
   
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 
 
 

 

28 July 2020 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) on 
Wednesday, 5th August, 2020 at 6.30 pm 

in the Online Meeting: Members of the public can register to view the meeting at 
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/3496770641153130511 

 
ROB BARLOW 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Paul Goodale 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Colin Woodcock 
 Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 

Viven Edge, Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, 
Martin Howard MSc. PCGM, Cert Ed, Brian Rush, Yvonne Stevens 
and Stephen Woodliffe 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B   MINUTES                                                                                            (Pages 1 - 8) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting, held on 22nd January 2020. 
 

Public Document Pack



C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Friday 31st July 2020. 
 

E   PUBLIC SPEAKING SLOT  
 

 At Chairman’s discretion, to read out written representations from members of the 
public on their behalf. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 
 

1   BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME                                                    (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

 (A report by Maddy Eyre, Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC 
Grant Administrator) 
 

2   BTAC REPORT - REVIEW OF 2020/21 EVENTS AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 
2021/22 EVENTS PROGRAMME                                                    (Pages 15 - 44) 
 

 (A report by Kristina Willoughby, Town Centre Services Manager)  
 

3   SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL                                                  (Pages 45 - 58) 
 

 (An item presented by the Chairman, Councillor Paul Goodale) 
 

4   TOWN DEAL - UPDATE                                                                 (Pages 59 - 74) 
 

 (A report by Michelle Sacks, Deputy Chief Executive (Place) 
 

This report is issued post publication of the agenda and hard copy issued of this additional report 
numbers the report and appendix as pages (01 – 016) which may be referenced in the meeting 
proper. 

 

5   WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM (Pages 75 - 76) 
 

 (For Members to discuss potential items for the Committee’s work programme for 
the current year.) 
 

It is noted that the original agenda issued noted this item as pages 59-60 which may be referenced 
in the meeting proper. 

 

Members of the public may register to view this hearing at: 
 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/3496770641153130511 
 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation e-mail 
 containing information about joining the webinar 

 
 

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/3496770641153130511


 
 
 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227  email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer as soon as possible. 
 

 
 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

22 January 2020 

Present: Councillor Paul Goodale (Chairman), Councillor Colin Woodcock (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 
Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, Brian Rush and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Observing: Councillor Paul Skinner  
 
Officers –  
Head of Place and Space, Accountancy Manager (Revenues and Systems), Local 
Communities Development Officer & BTAC Grant Administrator and Senior Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
44   APOLOGIES 

 
There were apologies for absence from Councillors Viven Edge, Martin Howard and 
Yvonne Stevens. 
 
45   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 27th November 2019, were agreed and signed by 
the Chairman. 
 
46   UPDATE ON ACTIONS FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

 
The Lead Officer, Phil Perry updated Members on actions from the minutes of the last 
meeting.  
 
2020/21 Events Programme Update (Minute 38)   
 
Cabinet met on 4th December 2019 and made the following decision: 
 
That the Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) recommendation of an increase of 
£27,000 expenditure for the 2020/21 Events Programme be agreed, subject to a report 
being submitted to the next meeting of BTAC including detailed costings for the 
programme and published as part of the public agenda papers.  
 
Papers included in the agenda pack set out detailed costings for the programme. 
 
Setting Up a Town Council (Minute 39)  
 
This would be considered by the Committee at its March meeting  
 
BTAC Financial Position (Minute 40)  
 
The ‘bottom line’ statement requested by Members was included in the report within the 
agenda pack.  
 
Update on Town Centre Operatives’ Activity (Minute 41)  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
22 January 2020 
 

1. The list of improvements of the BTAC Operatives had been published on the 
Council’s website. 

2. The Council could take no action regarding litter on private land, the responsibility 
was the land owners unless it was to do with dog fouling.  

 
Proposed removal of BT payphones (Minute 42)  
 
1. An email was sent the day after the last meeting to request that the payphone on 

Carlton Road be cleaned and repaired, which was promptly responded to by BT to 
the affect that this would take place  

2. The Committee’s objection to the removal of the payphone had been relayed to the 
Development Management Department to be included in the Council’s consultation 
response.   

 
47   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
A declaration of interest was received from Councillor Stephen Woodliffe in relation to 
his connection with The Cross Roads Lunch Club, which had applied for a grant from 
the BTAC Small Grants Scheme. He declared that he would take part in discussions but 
would not vote. 
 
48   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 
None. 
 
49   PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME 

 
None. 
 
50   POLICING ISSUES 

 
Inspector Fran Harrod attended the meeting and provided Members with an update on 
the policing issues within the BTAC area.  
 
Staffing 
 
There was a new beat manager, who was assisting Inspector Harrod in the town centre. 
It was explained that his aim was to focus on anti-social behaviour and drug issues 
within the town.  
 
Four new officers would soon be arriving from their training in addition to the officers 
who had been assigned to Boston.  
 
The Major Crime Unit was investigating into the recent murder in Boston, complimented 
by the knowledge and experience of local officers. Inspector Harrod commended the 
residents of Boston for the way they had rallied together and assisted Police by 
reporting any information they had, no matter how minor. 
 
Two officers who were interested in transferring to Boston and had heard bad reports of 
the town had all commented on what a nice town it actually was.  
 

Page 2



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
22 January 2020 

 

It was a priority to the Police that young adults were made aware of the possibilities of 
joining the Police force and how many jobs were available within it.  
 
General Policing 
 
In December there were 1,214 calls, 553 recorded crimes and 236 people placed in 
custody (which took prisoners from the both the Boston and Spalding areas). 
  
A successful case saw three members of the public targeted relating to shop theft, which 
led to seventeen charges of theft. One of the individuals was sentenced to twelve 
months in prison and had been banned from all shops in Lincolnshire.  ARC 
Lincolnshire, Assisting Rehabilitation through Collaboration (a multi-agency team striving 
to reduce offending in Lincolnshire) had been involved. 
 
In terms of anti-social behaviour, additional priority had been given to dealing with 
youths gathering around McDonald’s on bikes. 
 
Mental Health Issues  
 
December had been a challenging period in relation to incidents involving people with 
mental health issues, with significant resources being focused at any time on individuals 
at risk. One case had involved two police officers trying to prevent an individual from 
jumping from a bridge, with others having to block off the road and carry out 
negotiations. One weekend, officers had been called to two separate suicides before 9 
am, which was not unusual.  One person had been making persistent calls and officers 
had to deal with missing persons who sometimes had mental health issues.  As well as 
significant resources, there was the impact such situations had on officers themselves 
and it was credit to the station that officers coped.   
 
Licensing Enforcement 
 
The Police Licensing Section had carried out more test purchases and other licensing 
enforcement action, and licence revocations had received a lot of press attention, as the 
public were keen to know about them. 
 
During debate, Members’ comments included people not feeling safe in West Street on 
an evening and no longer reporting crime because they felt the Police took no action, 
though others expressed the opposite view and it was remarked that the situation was 
not helped by negative press and social media articles.   
 
Inspector Harrod then responded to other questions and concerns. 
 

 The responsibility for children on bikes without lights and helmets lay with their 
parents.  An opportunity had been given for them to buy bike lights at a discounted 
price.  Officers planned to go into all schools and they already held actions days on 
this subject. 

 It was a valid point that crimes committed by young people were particularly worrying 
and earlier interventions should be increased.  This problem was increasingly 
approached by the Police jointly with the Council.  Young suspects went before a 
multiagency Youth Diversionary Panel to look at interventions that might be more 

Page 3



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
22 January 2020 
 

effective than simply criminalising them.  A lot of other work was also ongoing, for 
example, officers often attended schools to deal with worrying behaviour and 
safeguarding work with troubled children.  It was not easy to quantify the effect this 
work had in order to measure and report the level of crime prevented.  The Assistant 
Chief Constable had spoken to Boston College students, inspiring them to aim to 
become police officers.   

 The offer to Members to join police officers on a Ride-Along was repeated, in order 
to witness the positive work going on.   

 There had been a shift in recent years from incidents involving excess alcohol; there 
were now more relating to substance abuse amongst people who often had, or 
developed, mental health conditions and a stance had to be taken against those 
selling drugs, which were cheap and easy to get hold of. 

 The Boston team were skilled at problem solving, finding ways to prevent crime in 
the first place, the efficient use of resources and partnership working.   

 Migrant workers arriving in the area recently were of a different nationality and were 
taking positions left vacant by previous migrant workers who had worked their way 
up to better jobs.  Employers reported that the new arrivals did not seem to aspire 
work their way up the employment ladder.  

 There was nothing the Police could do with respect to people moving around public 
areas in large groups, who were not breaking the law or causing anti-social 
behaviour in doing so.   

 There was an equal percentage of crimes committed by those of non-English origin.  

 A ‘day of action’ was held in the town centre twice a month, when Police flooded an 
area and stopped people who were cycling in restricted areas.  This was seen as a 
useful exercise although it was believed that most individuals continued doing so 
when the officers were not there. It was important to provide a visible Police 
presence in the villages too; Members could contact Inspector Harrod about a day of 
action in their areas.   

 If members of the public reported a vandalised wheeled bin it would be recorded, but 
not investigated as a priority.   

 All authorities recognised the increase in people presenting with mental health 
conditions, which was also putting additional pressure on the NHS as well as the 
Police.  A new ‘spoke and hub’ approach was to be introduced, which the Chief 
Inspector would be leading on.  The pressure on children and young people was 
particularly worrying.  Officers helped people in crisis as best they could.   

 

Action: FH  
Link up Councillor Woodliffe with the Chief Inspector in order to invite the Inspector to a 
Health Scrutiny Committee meeting. 

 

 Although Ward Members reported that residents in Fenside were fearful of crime due 
to lack of CCTV, the Police did not find the area to be problematic.  There were other 
areas where there were more incidents that had never had cameras.  Provision of 
CCTV, however, was not an issue for the Police.   

 
[Councillor Alison Austin left at 7.45 pm] 

 

 Members could advise people, as Councillors, that they should not park on 
pavements where this was causing problems.  Members could contact Inspector 
Harrod regarding any persistent issue of people parking on the pavements in a 

Page 4



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
22 January 2020 

 

particular area and it would be addressed by the attendance of officers, a leaflet drop 
and random enforcement.  However, if there was a large obstruction, the Police 
should be called and officers would attend if possible.   
 

A Member was concerned about some referring to incidents as ‘perceived’ crime, as 
though they were not really happening, which made caused negativity when people 
wanted to work together with the Police.  Inspector Harrod stressed that she did not use 
that term and that any unhelpful language should be challenged. 
 
Members recognised the significant police resources used dealing with people who were 
drunk and/or suffering with mental health conditions.  Inspector Harrod and the Police 
were thanked for their hard work. 
 
51   TOWNS FUND MANAGEMENT BOARD REPRESENTATIVE 

 
The Chairman of the Committee presented a report on the Towns Fund Management 
Board Representative.  
 
During discussion, Members expressed disapproval of being asked to leave the Board 
meeting as members of the public so early, and that it was felt the Committee could 
have been given more information prior to the meeting.  
 

Action: LS 
Email Members with a link to the agenda of the Board meetings prior to the meeting so 
that Members of the Committee can report their questions and views to the Chairman.   

 

Resolved: That the Chairman of BTAC, who ever that may be, will represent the 
Committee at the Boston Town Deal Management Board meetings. 

 
52   BTAC SMALL GRANTS SCHEME 

 
The Local Communities Development Officer and BTAC Grant Administrator presented 
the details of the applications received in the current round by the Small Grants Working 
Group.  
 
Members expressed their appreciation for Lunch Clubs, which helped tackle loneliness 
within the town. 
 

Action: ME  
Publish details of Lunch Clubs and other charities on the BTAC website  

 

RESOLVED:  
1. That the recommendations made by the working group in respect of eligible 

applications be endorsed, as set out below.  
2. That, funds be allocated to purchase promotional materials with the BTAC 

brand in accordance with the quote of £75.00 + VAT for 100 9.8cm x 9.8cm 
static fix window stickers. 

 

Applicant Project Amount 
requested 

Suggested 
Award 

Working Group 
recommendations 

Page 5



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
22 January 2020 
 

Boston 
Community 
Transport 

Targeted promotion of 
Boston Community 
Transport Services within 
the BTAC area through 
holding coffee mornings 
in venues across 7 BTAC 
Wards 

£981.00 £481.00 To award minus £500 
for advertising in the 
Target – Through 
another application 
from another 
application BCT will 
be in receipt of this 
amount 

The Boston in 
Bloom 
Partnership 

To purchase plants and 
fertiliser to carry out 
planting project in the 
final raised bed adjacent 
to the Police Station as 
part of the ongoing 
development of the B&M 
area. 

£709.00 £709.00 Award full amount 
requested 

The 
Crossroads 
Lunch Club 

To contribute towards 
running costs of the 
Lunch Club provision 
bringing together lonely 
and isolated people from 
within the BTAC Wards of 
Boston. 

£1,000.00 £1,000.00 Award full amount 
requested which 
includes an allocation 
of £500 towards 
transport costs 
provided by Boston 
Community Transport 

The 
Wednesday 
Club 

To enable young people 
with special needs to 
have the opportunity to 
go on trips to Yorkshire 
Wildlife Park, to the 
Pantomime at Blackfriars 
and hold a Christmas 
Party in the family room 
of Queen of Spades 
Public House. 

£1,000.00 £1.000.00 Award full amount 
requested 

The Parish of 
Boston 

To contribute towards 
staff costs to run their 
community breakfast club 
out of St Botolph’s and St 
Christopher’s Churches. 

£1,000.00 AGREED 
NOT TO 
FUND 

Cannot support 
staffing costs 

 

 
53   BTAC 2019/20 FINANCIAL POSITION UPDATE 

 
The Accountancy Manager provided Members with an update on BTAC’s financial 
position as at December 2019.  
 
The current financial position of BTAC was noted by Members. 
 
54   PROPOSED BTAC BUDGET 2020/21 AND FORECAST TO 2024/25 

 
Members of the Committee were provided with details of the Proposed BTAC Budget 
2020/21 and Forecast to 2024/25.   

Page 6



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
22 January 2020 

 

 
Following Members questions, the Accountancy Manager stated that the figure of 
£100,000 in Table 3 of the appendices was referring to maintenance within the town 
instead of the stated Premises cost.  
 

RESOLVED: That it be recommended to Cabinet and Council the level of BTAC’s 
Special Expense precept for 2020/21 be £702,696 and the Council Tax Charge at 
Band D be £75.51.   

 
55   UPDATE ON WORK OF BTAC OPERATIVES - STANDING ITEM 

 
The Head of Place and Space presented a report, which provided an update on the 
BTAC Operatives’ Activity through December and January. These included: 

 Dealing with vandalism and graffiti – central park fencing, broken bins and road 
signs, 12 incidences of graffiti,  

 Weed spraying at Lawrence Lane and Custom House Quay 

 Ongoing Public Realm Improvement Projects: 

 The operatives continued to be involved in keeping a number of Boston in 
Bloom sites clear.  

 Cleaning and Clearing Weeds on John Adams Way, Bargate Bridge, Wide 
Bargate, B&M Site, Custom House Quay.  

 Street vacuuming - targeting cigarette ends specifically  

 Continue with the Street Furniture Painting Programme  

 Cleaning up chewing gum  

 Reactive Maintenance:  

 Fence, seating and bin repairs and replacement  

 Replace/refit uneven paving slabs Crown House  

 Repair benches Bank Street and Dolphin Lane  
 
Members relayed concerns from individuals who lived around Central Park in relation to 
the noise that would eventually be produced by the Skate Park. The Head of Place and 
Space explained that soundproof fencing had been considered; however, this would 
create a barrier from the rest of the park. It was explained that once the Skate Park had 
been built, if complaints were received, soundproofing would be reconsidered.  
 
Some Members expressed their concerns of how little green space there was for young 
people to use within the town besides Central Park. It was suggested that there should 
be allocated time for Members to discuss investment in their wards and that this should 
be added to the Work Programme as a separate meeting.  
 

Action: PP 
Add a link to the BTAC website for members of the public to access the Community 
Volunteer information. 

 
56   WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM 

 
The Head of Place and Space explained that as the open spaces working group had not 
yet met; therefore, the Play Area Improvements ‘Wish List’ would be scheduled for a 
meeting in the new Municipal Year.  

Page 7



Boston Town Area Committee (BTAC) 
22 January 2020 
 

 
The Work Programme was noted by Members. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 9.00 pm 
 

Page 8



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE: 5 AUGUST 2020 

SUBJECT: BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME 

REPORT AUTHOR: MADDY EYRE, LOCAL COMMUNITIES 
DEVELOPMENT OFFICER AND BTAC GRANT 
ADMINISTRATOR 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
In accordance with the Committee’s Small Grant Scheme, this report presents 
the applications made to the Small Grants Working Group in Round 3 of the 
financial year 2019/2020, however takes into account changes that have now 
occurred as a consequence of the covid-19 outbreak and the lockdown 
situation. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee endorse the recommendations made by the Working 
Group in respect of eligible applications where the applicant has confirmed 
they are able to deliver their project following the covid-19 outbreak. 
 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Committee’s policy is to consider each eligible application in light of the 
recommendations made by the Small Grant Working Group.  
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
NA 
 
 

 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 1



 

1. REPORT 
 
1.1 6 applications were received in Round 3 of the Boston Town Area 

Committee Small Grant Scheme; of the 6, all were eligible for 
consideration.   

1.2 In the light of the covid-19 outbreak and lockdown, the original 
committee meeting where applications were to be endorsed was 
cancelled and in effect putting these applications on hold. When a new 
meeting date was mooted all 6 applicants were contacted to establish 
whether, should they be awarded funding, their projects would be able 
to go ahead.  They were given 3 options: 
 

Option 1: Allow their application to be submitted for decision at the August 
Meeting – if it is approved funds to be transferred to their respective accounts 
for their project to be delivered straight away OR at a later stage when they 
feel able to do so. 
  
Option 2: Keep their application on hold until later in the year, when they 
have a better idea of how they intend to move forward with their project into 
next year. 
  
Option 3: Withdraw their application from the scheme and resubmit another 
time when they feel able to do so. 
 
Applicants who choose option 2 have been assured that the funding allocated 
for Round 3 19/20 would remain available when they re-submit. 
 
1.3 4 out of the 6 applicants have chosen to go with Option 1 to be endorsed 
at this meeting. 
 
Please see Table 1 below indicating all 6 applicants and which option they 
have chosen.  Table 2 shows the decisions of the Small Grant Working 
Group, at their meeting of 27th February 2020, taken before lockdown, which 
still stand for endorsement. 
 
TABLE 1 
 

Applicant Project Amount 
requested 

Option taken 

Boston 
Samaritans 

To purchase branded promotional 
materials to aid awareness 
raising of their services across 
Boston. 
 

£706.67 Option 1 to be 
considered 
August 2020 

Centrepoint 
Outreach 

To purchase equipment and 
appropriate licences to run an 
afternoon film club at their centre 
on Red Lion Street for the town’s 
homeless and volunteers. 
 

£754.00 Option 2 – to 
be considered 
later in the 
year. 

Page 10



 

Lincoln Diocesan 
Board of 
Education 

To contribute towards the cost of 
an arts/performance based 
project exploring ideas of faith 
and identity in 3 schools and their 
wider communities 
 

£1,000.00 Option 2 – to 
be considered 
later in the 
year. 

Lincolnshire 
Community & 
Voluntary Service 
– English 
Language Co-
ordination Project 

To contribute towards the cost of 
continuing to provide a single 
point of access website to enable 
people to find appropriate English 
language courses – formal and 
informal from a number of Boston 
providers 

£1,000.00 Option 1 to be 
considered 
August 2020 

Boston Hakusan 
City 20/21 
Exchange 
Programme 

To contribute towards costs of 
providing the visiting Japanese 
students and their chaperones 
with souvenirs, trips and activities 
while they are here and contribute 
towards their Farewell Ceremony. 
 

£1,000.00 Option 1 to be 
considered 
August 2020 

Wyberton Football 
Club 

To contribute towards the 
purchase of a mower to enable 
them to keep maintenance of 
their grounds in-house. 
 

£1,000.00 Option 1 to be 
considered 
August 2020 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The value of each grant sought is set out in Table 1.  The Committee’s current 
Small Grant financial position is set out on the finance pro-forma that 
accompanies this report. Stipulating that any remaining funds to be ring-
fenced for the remaining Round 3 applications currently on hold until later this 
year. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
This work relates directly to the Local Government Act 2000 and to the Duty 
of Well-being placed upon the Council to promote and improve the well-being 
of the District.  
 

 

Page 11



 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Priorities supported will promote fairness and inclusion while supporting 
Boston Town Area Committee’s commitment to equal opportunities for all, 
including those protected characteristics identified within the Equalities Act 
2010 
 
There are no equalities implications within this report.  All equalities 
implications will be managed alongside each individual applicant through the 
monitoring process of project delivery. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
Applications have been reviewed by the Small Grant Working Group with their 
comments set out within Table 2 to be circulated at full committee. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
None 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Grant Applications Application summaries are available to 
BTAC Members on request from the Small 
Grant Scheme Administrator. 

 
 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Name of body Date 
 

BTAC Small Grants Scheme Working 
Group 

27th February 2020 

Page 12



 

FINANCE PROFORMA 

 
BOSTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
PROFORMA FOR EXECUTIVE APPROVAL OF THE RELEASE OF RESOURCES 
(CAPITAL AND REVENUE BUDGETS) 
 
FROM:  Rachel Chatterton  
 

THIS PROFORMA PROVIDES THE FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
IN RESPECT OF THE ATTACHED 

     

REPORT:  Boston Town Area Committee 

REPORT DATE: August 2020 

 
OPTION 1 £ Year 1 £ Year 2 £ Year 3 £ Year 4 £ Year 5 
 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Revenue      
Round 3 
recommended 
awards 
 

 

 
 

£3,706.67 
 

 

    

Total Revenue 
Cost 

£3,706.67     

 
Funding required:   Considered by:  

BTAC  
Date: 
August 
2020 

Total capital cost 
 

£0    

Revenue cost 
 

£3,706.67    

 
Financial Services Comments 
The committee has available funds of £5,655 for small grant applications carried 
forward from 2019.20.   
 
If all applications are successful the committee will have remaining funds of 
£1,948.33 to be ring-fenced for applications from Round 3 not submitted at this 
meeting.  
  
This does not affect the budget for 20.21 of £9000.  
 
Risk 
 
None 
 
Procurement 
 
Value for Money Efficiency 

 
This FP is valid for 3 months 

from FP date 
If this FP is no longer required please 

advise Finance 
If there are changes to the original report 
it may invalidate this document, it must 

be reviewed by Finance. 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 

DATE: 5 AUGUST 2020 

SUBJECT: 

 

 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

BTAC REPORT: REVIEW OF 2020/21 EVENTS AND 

LOOKING FORWARD TO 2021/22 EVENTS PROGRAMME 

 

HEAD OF PLACE AND SPACE 

EXEMPT REPORT: No 

 
 

SUMMARY: 
 
The BTAC budget incorporates a variety of services for the residents of Boston 
including the delivery of an events programme, throughout the financial year.  
 
This report provides an update on the 2020 programme for the Committee to note, 
proposals for an enhanced Christmas 2020 event and options for a planned events 
programme for the 2021/22 financial year.  The report includes budgeted financial 
breakdowns covering both financial years, to support the Committee in its 
deliberations. 
 
The baseline for the events budget annually is £41,500.  BTAC last received a report 
on events at its 2 October 2019 meeting, where Members agreed the events 
programme for the 2020/21 financial year.  At is 2 October meeting, BTAC agreed to 
increase spend by £27,000 for the 2020/21 financial year and this decision received 
Cabinet approval at its 4 December meeting.   
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That this committee: 
 
i) Notes the outcomes of the 2020 events programme; 
ii) Reallocates existing budget to the Christmas 2020 event increasing the 

budget from £14,500 to £22,000, to enable a 4 day Christmas event; 
iii) Reallocates £13,500 of existing budget to an Illuminate Fire Garden for the 

Christmas 2020 event; 
iv) Reallocates £5,500 of existing budget to a Letters to Santa projection 

(Appendix F); 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 2



v) Considers the planned programme of events for 2021/22 as detailed in the 
report; and selects either Option 1 – an increase in budget of £22,000; Option 
2 - an increase in budget by £9,700; or Option 3 – in budget. 

vi) Recommends to Cabinet if recommendations Option 1 being over £10k is 
determined. 

 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To ensure the necessary timescales needed for the planning and development of an 
events programme for 2020/21 within the Borough, approval of a programme, is 
sought at this early stage. 
  

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 

 To limit the events programme to existing budgets. 

 To stop delivering events. 
 

REPORT:  

 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The BTAC budget incorporates a number of services for the residents of 

Boston including event delivery.  
 
 
2.0 Event Delivery 2020 Financial Year 
 
2.1    BTAC last received a report on events at its 2 October 2019 meeting where 

Members agreed the events programme for the 2020/21 financial year.  It 
was agreed to increase spend by £27,000 and this received cabinet approval 
at its 4 December meeting.   

 
2.2 The Events Team consists of 1.5 Full Time Equivalents (FTE’s), and in the 

delivery of the current events programme is working at full capacity. To 
deliver additional events safely going forward would require additional 
resources. 

 
2.3      BTAC policy set in 2017/18 determined that the events programme be 

focused on BTAC residents and the corresponding programme to date has 
generally comprised of a mix of community-based events that provide 
families with opportunities that may not otherwise be easily affordable.     

 
2.4 The Events Programme as presented to the October 2019 BTAC meeting is 

appended, for reference (Appendix A). 
 This report has had additional columns added for actual spend and actual 

income as Covid has of course affected events due to be held in 2020. 

Page 16



  
2.5  Covid 19 has hit the Events industry, as many other sectors, hard and it has 

not been possible to run events from March 2020 to date. Officers are 
currently planning events from September 2020 onwards and are working 
closely with partners through the Safety Advisory Group, Lincolnshire Event 
Safety Partnership and are monitoring government guidance in order to seek 
further clarity on the ability to deliver future events in the programme. 

 
2.6        Boston Big Local (BBL) continues to be a key supporter of events for Boston 

residents and its funding has enabled additional community based events in 
previous years for 2019 & 2020 their funding totalled £42k.  Officers will be 
applying to BBL in early 2021, in hope we are successful to continue working 
with them and hosting some events in partnership with them.  

 
2.7 The Christmas Market & Lights Switch on event each November has for the 

past two years been funded through the Controlling Migration Fund and with 
funding coming to an end in 2019, the 2020 event was to be incorporated 
into and funded by BTAC events programme for the first time.  

 
2.8 During the financial year, the Events Team and the Safety Advisory Group 

have also provided advice and support to a number of events within Boston 
that are run by external providers. These events include: 

 

 The Boston Bike Night 

 Central Park Fun Fair 
 
 
3.0  2020 Christmas Event 
 
3.1 Following the cessation of the BTAC events programme during lockdown, it 

is proposed that budgeted funding unspent to date, is reallocated towards 
increasing the appeal of a seasonal Christmas 2020 event, by increasing the 
allocated budget from £14,500 to £22,000.  This would enable a four day 
Christmas event in the Bargate Green car park starting on the day of the 
Christmas Lights Switch on event. This will be run in alpine wooden huts and 
Officers have already had a lot of interest in such an event following some 
soft market testing. A small fairground ride would be included and food & 
drink plus an area for live music would also be available. All bookings for the 
event would have appropriate terms and conditions to cover a second covid 
19 outbreak and should such event not happen due to government advice, 
bookings would be able to transfer a 2021 event.  £2,000 of the reallocated 
budget would be used to retest the County Council lighting columns for the 
next two seasons, in preparation for hanging the Christmas lights in 
partnership with the Christmas In Boston Group and their efforts of lighting 
the Town. 

  
3.2  It is also proposed that £13,500 of budgeted funding unspent to date, is 

reallocated for an Illuminate Fire Garden for the 2020 Christmas event.  In 
2019 Transported in partnership with Boston Borough Council delivered a 
hugely successful fire garden located on Bargate Green car park as part of 

Page 17



the Christmas Market and Lights Switch on event. There is an opportunity to 
deliver this again on a larger scale in Central Park and the Council are 
working with Transported and the wider Pilgrim Roots group to develop a 
campaign of #onesmallcandle. Where every household will be encouraged to 
place a (non-flammable) candle in their window as a sign of hope and 
celebration of Illuminate 2020, alongside 1620 lanterns displayed in locations 
across the Town, to replace the parade for this year. 

 
3.3  Authorise spend for Letters to Santa projection (Appendix F) of £5,500; 
 The Events Team has being provided information about projections for one 

night and details on this are enclosed in Appendix F. This idea has been 
brought to the Event Team’s attention by one of the Borough’s Elected 
Member’s. 

 
3.4 Officers are able to deliver the above proposed changes to the programme 

within the existing events budget set by BTAC for 2020/2021. 
 
 
4.0   Options for 2021/22 Financial Year 
 
4.1 Members of BTAC in March 2019 suggested that going forward; the 

Committee should now try to take steps to hold major events in Boston that 
attract people from further afield. It was also reported that the current 
capacity within the Events Team was sufficient to deliver the programme; 
however, any ambition to expand the events programme further than the 
annual £40,000 base expenditure budget was likely to require additional 
resource or a reduction elsewhere in the programme.  BTAC at is 2 October 
meeting subsequently agreed to increase spend by £27,000 for the 2020/21 
financial year.    

 
4.2 Outlined below are three options for delivering an events programme during 

the 2021/22 financial year as a single year pilot to test the way forward in 
developing larger scale events, within a manageable programme. 

 
4.3 All three options outline a community based Boston Show; with Boston 

Borough Council officers working in partnership with the Bike Night 
organisers; classic car show organisers and the Christmas in Boston Group 
to create a 4 day Summer show in Boston.  

 
 The event would begin on Thursday 1 July with Boston Bike Night 

funded and self-contained by themselves 
 Friday 2 July – daytime activities for pre-school children – timings to be 

confirmed around set up for the weekend’s events. 
 Saturday 3 & Sunday 4 July, the roundabout area in front of WH Smith 

would showcase classic cars for people to enjoy. The Park would be 
filled with activities for families to enjoy, exhibition ring, bouncy castles 
and provide businesses an option to attend to showcase. The 
Christmas in Boston Group would organise an electric and EV based 
Car Show. 

 

Page 18



 
4.4 All three options also include the 2020 postponed ‘Party in the Park’ event 

due to take place on Sat 25 July 2020, but now re-arranged for Sat 24 July 
2021. The Council has provided the opportunity to people to transfer their 
tickets to the new date and moved all 2020 bookings to this revised date. 

 
4.5 Option One incorporates some larger scale events in addition to the existing 

community based events.  This option aims to keep all the free community 
events, which people have enjoyed in 2019 but adds/combines some of the 
existing larger scale events, some of which would have or could have a 
charge on entry.  A major cost for the 2020/21 budget was the return of the 
Christmas Market & Lights Switch on event (not including the provision of 
lights) within the budget.  Officers have included the expansion of that event 
into a 4 day Christmas Market on Bargate Green car park.  This report in 3.1 
above, proposes a trial for the 2020 Christmas event and if successful could 
be repeated for the 2021 event. 

 
 Option One, would cost BTAC an additional £22,000 for the 2021/22 financial 

year and a breakdown of this programme is appended (Appendix B), (the 
annual baseline budget for events in 2021/22 is £41,500). 

 
4.6 Option Two focuses on larger scale events within the BTAC funded events 

programme with a more limited programme of smaller scale community 
focussed events delivered principally through the BBL funding stream. This 
plan does not include the extended 4 day Christmas Market. 

 
 Option Two could be delivered with an additional £9,700 for the 2021/22 

financial year a breakdown of this programme is appended (Appendix C), 
(the annual baseline budget for events in 2021/22 is £41,500). 

 
4.7 Option Three retains the existing BTAC budget at £41,500 and the 

programme is reduced to retain current spending as shown in (Appendix D). 
 
 This option focuses on some larger scale events within the BTAC funded 

event programme, but does not provide any free community events or 
support for BBL events if we are successful with a funding application to 
them.  This would be delivered within the £41,500 budget. 

 
4.8 The events team currently seeks sponsorships through networking events 

and meetings where it is feasible to do so within existing resources. To 
continue to support the BTAC programme, a Member Working Group may 
wish to seek additional sponsorship for events, in order to offset the BTAC 
expenditure budget.   

 
 Major sponsors could support the following events: 

 Boston Show 

 Party in the Park  

Page 19



 Potential further sponsorship details and options to generate an income are 

appended for a future BTAC working group to debate and consider 

(Appendix E). 

 
5.0 Prosperity of the town 
 
5.1 The Events programme has led to wider benefits to the wider Town Centre 

with businesses seeing an increase in their footfall whilst events are being 
held, and businesses are starting to support the development of the events 
programme through sponsorship and advertising.  

 
 
6   Conclusion 
 
6.1     Following the increase in the number of events and breadth of the 

programme in recent years, Boston is developing into a town more noted for 
its events; with a wide mix of family oriented and more commercially focused 
events.  

 
6.2 The Events Team will continue to establish new relationships with 

businesses to create further sponsorship opportunities, where feasible, to 
support the costs of running events. Support from a Member Working Group 
could also enhance this work towards securing sponsorship. 

 
6.3 The current capacity within the Events Team is sufficient to deliver a 2021/22 

programme.  However, any ambition to further expand the events programme 
in the future will require additional resource in order to ensure it is delivered 
safely. This also includes additional requests from external parties wishing to 
hold events on Borough Council land.  

 
6.4 This report request that BTAC continues to support the Events programme 

and Members consider the options to increase the budget to allow continued 
delivery and development of the programme. 

 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The current Events budget outline is appended (Appendix A). 
 
The proposed 2021/22 events budget outlined, is currently showing a shortfall of 
£22,000 (Appendix B) 
 
The proposed 2021/22 events budget outlined, is currently showing a shortfall of 
£9,500 (Appendix C) 
 
Should additional resources be considered appropriate for the programme, it is
proposed that these be funded from existing unallocated reserve.

Spending from reserves is obviously a finite sum, and future years will need to 
consider the level of support to events alongside the reminder of BTAC's 
spending allocations. 

 

 
 

Page 20



 
 
 

LEGAL & EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
The Council is required to conform to the requirements of the EU Procurement 
Directive and its own Contract Procurement and Procedure Rules Part 4 (H) of the 
Constitution. 
 
The Council uses its powers to encourage tourism within the Borough through the 
Local Government Act 1972, section 144. 
 
There are no equality implications within this report, any equality implications arising 
from an individual event are identified and managed through individual event planning 
processes and risk assessment.  
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 

 Members of the public at events prior to the Covid 19 pandemic. 

 Businesses who have supported the events programme. 

 Portfolio Holder with responsibility for Events. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendix A – Events review – current status 
Appendix B – Option 1 proposed Events Budget 2021/22 
Appendix C – Option 2 proposed events budget 2021/22 
Appendix D – Option 3 proposed events budget 2021/22 
Appendix E – Sponsorship support 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report. 
 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body. 
 

 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



P
age 23



P
age 24



Appendix B - Option 1 budget - 2020/21

2021

Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Projected Income

Mar-21

Sunday 21 or 28th March Celebration of Farming

Work with local groups to develop 

this event 800.00£                        -£                      

Jun-21 -£                              -£                      

18 - 20 June

1940s Two day event and 

Entertainment in the Market 

Place

If BBL funding approved - without 

BBL funding approved March 2021 

we would not run this event 1,000.00£                      200.00£                

Jul-21

Date TBC Teenage Market

Working with Lincoln University as 

proposed in 2020 but postponed 

due to Covid 19 800.00£                        -£                      

Fri 2 - Sun 4 July Boston Show

Two day fun and celebrations of the 

Town - bit of a Covid Recovery 

event 10,000.00£                   -£                      

Sat 24 July 

Party in the Park - 

POSTPONED from 2020 

some tickets already sold

Central Park - £1602.19 income so far 

from 2020 event 15,500.00£                    5,000.00£            

Aug-21

Wednesdays in August Childrens Free activities

Messy Hands & feet painting, circus 

skills, Teddy bears picnic 1,600.00£                      150.00£                 

Sep-21
Sat 25 September Outdoor Cinema Event Potentially sponsored 1,500.00£                      2,000.00£            

Nov-21

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 25



Appendix B - Option 1 budget - 2020/21

Thursday 25 November

Christmas Market/Lights 

Switch on

This will include Illuminate parade 

which is funded and managed by 

Transported 22,000.00£                   4,000.00£            

Dec-21

Sunday 12 December

Festive Market & Santa Fun 

Run
Santa Fun Run organised and paid for by 

Boston Community Runners 4,000.00£                     500.00£                

External event income projected
57,200.00£                   11,850.00£             

*General spend is bits that are used for all events, toilets, cables, kit, *General Spend 6,300.00£                     8,170.00£              

safety matting, BTAC 

operatives ovetime payments Total 63,500.00£                   
Actual Budget 41,500.00£                    £14,000

Extra money needed 22,000.00£                   

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 26



Appendix C - Option 2 budget - 2020/21

2021

Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Projected Income

Mar-21

Sunday 21 or 28th March Celebration of Farming

Work with local groups to develop 

this event 500.00£                        -£                      

Jun-21 -£                              -£                      

18 - 20 June

1940s Two day event and 

Entertainment in the Market 

Place

If BBL funding approved - without 

BBL funding approved March 2021 

we would not run this event 1,000.00£                      200.00£                

Jul-21

Fri 2 - Sun 4 July Boston Show

Two day fun and celebrations of the 

Town - bit of a Covid Recovery 

event 10,000.00£                   -£                      

Sat 24 July 

Party in the Park - 

POSTPONED from 2020 

some tickets already sold

Central Park - £1602.19 income so far 

from 2020 event 15,500.00£                    5,000.00£            

Aug-21

2 Wednesdays in August Childrens Free activities

Such as Messy Hands & feet 

painting, circus skills, Teddy bears 

picnic 1,500.00£                      150.00£                 

Nov-21

Thursday 25 November

Christmas Market/Lights 

Switch on

This will include Illuminate parade 

which is funded and managed by 

Transported 15,200.00£                    2,000.00£            

Dec-21

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 27



Appendix C - Option 2 budget - 2020/21

Sunday 12 December

Festive Market & Santa Fun 

Run
Santa Fun Run organised and paid for by 

Boston Community Runners 3,000.00£                     500.00£                

External event income projected
46,700.00£                   7,850.00£             

*General spend is bits that are used for all events, toilets, cables, kit, *General Spend 4,500.00£                     8,170.00£              

safety matting, BTAC 

operatives ovetime payments Total 51,200.00£                    16,020.00£           

Actual budget 41,500.00£                    £14,000

Extra budget needed 9,700.00£                     

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 28



Appendix D - Option 3 budget - 2020/21

2021

Date of Event Event Comments Predicted Outgoings Projected Income

Jul-21

Sat 3 - Sun 4 July Boston Show

Two day fun and celebrations of the 

Town - bit of a Covid Recovery 

event 8,000.00£                     -£                      

Sat 24 July 

Party in the Park - 

POSTPONED from 2020 

some tickets already sold

Central Park - £1602.19 income so far 

from 2020 event 14,500.00£                    5,000.00£            

Nov-21

Thursday 25 November

Christmas Market/Lights 

Switch on

This will include Illuminate parade 

which is funded and managed by 

Transported 12,000.00£                    2,000.00£            

Dec-21

Sunday 12 December

Festive Market & Santa Fun 

Run
Santa Fun Run organised and paid for by 

Boston Community Runners 2,500.00£                     500.00£                

External event income projected
37,000.00£                   7,500.00£             

*General spend is bits that are used for all events, toilets, cables, kit, *General Spend 4,500.00£                     8,170.00£              

safety matting, BTAC 

operatives ovetime payments Total 41,500.00£                    15,670.00£            
Actual budget 41,500.00£                    £14,000

Extra budget needed -£                              

Report prepared by Kristina Willoughby

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



AN AUDIO VISUAL PROJECTION SHOW

APPENDIX F

P
age 35



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S2L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

Letters To Santa
Event Overview

• Letters to Santa is a unique family friendly 
projection event created by Double Take 
Projections. 

• The show is virtually hosted by Santa Claus, Mrs 
Claus and their mischievous elves, as they take 
us on a Christmas journey with animated stories, 
music and audience participation.

• Children will have the opportunity to post their 
Christmas lists and letters via a magical postbox 
and watch as the elves deliver them to Santa in the 
North Pole.

• Our aim is to offer a magical projected experience 
at a fraction of the price that a tailor-made show 
would cost. Elements of the show can also be 
personalised to make it unique to your location.

• As well as the set, hour-long animation, projection 
equipment and staffing costs, the package also 
includes promotional materials for social media to 
help generate a buzz ahead of your event.

• Clients are also welcome and encouraged to fund 
their own extras like hot chocolate or mulled wine 
stations, carol singers, etc.

P
age 36



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S3L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

Your booking is risk-free from 
the impact of Coronavirus

I f  social  distancing measures remain in place 
over the 2020 festive period,  one way we plan 
to combat this  is  to condense the show to 30 
minutes and have mult iple performances over 
the evening.

Introducing staggered t ime slots over a longer 
period of t ime with smaller  s ized groups means 
that everyone can view the show safely while 

We are aware of the current chal lenges that 
Covid-19 poses to the events industry and the 
safety and wellbeing of  our audiences is  our 
utmost priority.

While we can’t  be certain what legislat ion wil l  be 
in place over the 2020 festive period,  we have 
contingency plans in place to ensure that your 
booking is  r isk-free.

adhering to social  distancing measures.

If  restrictions mean that we are completely 
unable to deliver your event over the 2020 
festive p erio d -  the b o oking will  b e honoured 
in 2021.

P
age 37



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S4L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

Mailroom
Scene Synopsis

• The mailroom scene doubles up as the countdown 
clock to the main show - with the Elves replacing 
the banner every minute to signal the time left 
until the start.

• This scene initially provides a stage for the Elves 
to hype up the crowd for the main show with 
singing and dancing as they interact with the 3D 
animated environment.

• Later in the show when children are invited to post 
their letters into our magic postbox - the mailroom 
scene appears to react to each letter being 
posted and sends paper magically flying around 
the room as the elves scramble to get it under 
control.

P
age 38



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S5L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

• The introduction of the storybook scene acts as a 
transition into a more illustrative-based animation 
about a robin’s quest to return a child’s Christmas 
card, lost in the post, back to their Grandmother. 

• Positioned on the head Elf’s desk in the study, the 
camera pans over to the storybook as the pages 
magically flutter open - transporting the audience 
into the robin story.

• The animated story is narrated by the Elf and there 
are a number of key areas in the soundtrack where 
your town name can be added - making it a more 
tangible experience for the audience, and allowing 
for a more personal show at your event.

Storybook
Scene Synopsis

P
age 39



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S6L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

Cheer-O-Meter
Scene Synopsis

• The Cheer-O-Meter scene coincides with the 
crowd singing Jingle Bells as a way of generating 
Christmas spirit.

• Elements of the machine appear to react to how 
well the crowd are singing - the dials rotate and 
the neon tubes are illuminated, making the scene 
more vivid and magical as the machine detects 
more ‘Christmas Cheer’.

• Elves are seen dancing, playing and interacting 
with the 3D animated environment as well as 
interacting with the crowd and encouraging 
audience participation.

P
age 40



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S7L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

Specifications
• The show content is created in 4K at portrait and 

landscape formats to be adaptable to your facade - no 
matter the shape or size.

• Our 20,000 lumen Panasonic laser projector will be 
used to give the show maximum impact and we stock 
a range of lenses allowing us to project from the most 
suitable position.

• If power is not available on site, all equipment will be 
powered by a silenced 7KW Honda inverter generator.

• Large scale outdoor PA will be provided.

P
age 41



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S8L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

Pricing Matrix
November
Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

13 14 15

30

December
Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Sun

1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21 22 23 24

Key

: £5,500 (+VAT)

: £3,900 (+VAT)

: £4,500 (+VAT)

P
age 42



D O U B L E  T A K E  P R O J E C T I O N S9L E T T E R S  T O  S A N TA

Portfolio

P
age 43



www.doubletakeproje ct ions.com

info@doubletakeproje ct ions.com

0131  285 4088

28 Tennant  Stre et
Edinburgh
EH6 5ND

Thank you.

We look forward to 
working with you.P

age 44

http://www.doubletakeprojections.com
http://www.doubletakeprojections.com


 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BTAC 

DATE: 5TH AUGUST 2020 

SUBJECT: SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHAIRMAN 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
At its meeting on 27th November 2019, the Committee considered the process for 
setting up a town council for Boston, but debate was deferred.  Members are asked to 
consider whether they want to ask officers to explore the issues involved and report 
back to BTAC for the Committee 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That BTAC takes a vote on whether to task officers with the work of exploring all the 
issues and implications involved in setting up a town council in order to report back to 
the Committee to consider. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The process of setting up a town council has been considered previously, but 
Members have not yet decided whether to ask officers to bring full information before 
them to make a final decision as to whether they wish to pursue this option. 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not to ask for any further information or consider whether to set up a town council for 
Boston. 
 
 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 3



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Officer time in researching the issues involved and reporting back to the Committee 
not yet determined. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
These would be explored by officers when drafting a report back to the Committee. 
 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
These would be explored by officers when drafting a report back to the Committee. 
 

 
 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 
These would be explored by officers when drafting a report back to the Committee. 
 

 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
These would be explored by officers when drafting a report back to the Committee. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
None. 
 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Report to BTAC of 11th December 2013 

APPENDIX B Minutes of BTAC meeting of 11th December 2013 

APPENDIX C Information from the www.gov.uk website on setting up a town 
council 

APPENDIX D Minutes of BTAC meeting of 27th November 2019 

 

Page 46

http://www.gov.uk/


 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
(If none then insert the working ‘No background papers as defined in Section 100D of 
the Local Government Act 1972 were used in the production of this report.’  Also 
delete the below text/boxes.) 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Community 
Governance 
Reviews: 
Guidance 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-
governance-reviews-guidance  

 
Use this link to the PDF: 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/8312/1527635.

pdf 

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Name of body Date 
 

BTAC 27th November 2019 

 

Page 47

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/8312/1527635.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/8312/1527635.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BTAC 

DATE: 11 DECEMBER 2013 

SUBJECT: FORMATION OF A NEW TOWN COUNCIL 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: COUNCILLOR PETER BEDFORD 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report is for information only and briefly sets out the process for the 
formation of a Town Council. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Committee discuss and note the information within the report. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The report was requested by the Committee. 
 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not to discuss the item. 
 
 

 
REPORT 
 
In a report to this Committee on 13 February 2013 I set out the then current 
procedure for the formation of a new Parish Council which could then be 
designated a Town or Community Council. 
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

Page 49



The Government have been anxious to make this procedure simpler to 
encourage more Parish Councils to be formed in line with the localism 
agenda. 
 
There was a consultation from October 2012 to 9 January 2013 and Central 
Government published a response to the consultation in September 2013. 
 
At Appendix A I show the flow chart showing the process as it was then in 
summary. [NOT ATTACHED AS PROCESS HAS CHANGED] 
 
The number of signatures required from the community in the petition to the 
local authority is:- 
 
50% of the electors for areas with fewer than 500 electors 
250 electors for areas with between 500 and 2500 electors 
10% of electors for areas of over 2500 electors 
 
On receipt of the petition the Local Authority would agree the terms of 
reference for the Community Governance Review. There was no time limit set 
for this. One the Terms of Reference were agreed the Authority would have to 
complete the review in a 12 month period. 
 
The community would be consulted as part of the Governance Review. 
 
If at the end of the review the Authority wishes to recommend a new Council 
this would be set up with a reorganisation order. 
 
The Council would come into being after elections either special elections or 
at the next electoral cycle depending on timing. 
 
Changes proposed following consultation:- 
 
These changes will be implemented by September 2014. 
 
The Government will change the law to limit the timescales to 12 months from 
receipt of the petition, rather than the agreement of the Terms Of Reference. 
They feel this will still give time for the complex Community Reviews to take 
place.  
 
They will legislate to reduce the number of signatures required on the petition. 
This will be 7.5% of electors in the area for all except very small communities. 
The Government will make it easier for Community Forums to transition to 
Parish Councils. These proposals are a little vague in the response and we 
will have to wait the legislation to see what it means. However in this case 
BTAC are already an established entity. Neighbourhood Forums will need 
neighbourhood plans approved at a referendum by electors before they can 
proceed to a petition stage. Neighbourhood Forms with their plan approved 
will then be able to initiate the Community Governance Review although the 
decisions on it will rest with the Local Authority. 
 

Page 50



There will be amendments to how the Community Review itself is carried out 
with particular reference to clearer definitions about “effectiveness” and 
“convenience”. 
 
There will be more guidance on elections following a successful review and 
an internal review of the decision. There will be no right of appeal.  
 
Detailed guidance on the evidence that would need to be supplied to the 
Community governance Review can be found at: 
 
www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/guidancecommunitygovernance2010 

 
This runs to over 50 pages and indicates how complex the process is, if it is 
done properly.  
 
CONCLUSION 
 
I will be reporting to the Cabinet in due course about this, should it become 
necessary. The review will take 2 F.T.E to complete in 12 months and with 
consultation will cost around £70,000. The Borough Council will meet this 
sum.  
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None immediately and the report gives an estimate of costs should the matter 
proceed. 
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
None. 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Original DCLG Consultation Paper on 
BTAC - Chart 

Page 51

http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/localgovernment/guidancecommunitygovernance2010


 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document title Where the document can be viewed 
 

Guidance on community 
governance reviews 

www.gov.uk  

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

Name of body Date 
 

BTAC 13th February 2013 

 
 

Page 52

http://www.gov.uk/


EXERPT FROM MINUTES 
 

 

 

BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 11 DECEMBER 2013 
 
Present: Councillors Mike Gilbert (Chairman), Dr Gurdip Samra (Vice-Chairman),          
Alison Austin, Mark Baker, Paul Gleeson, Paul Goodale, Yvonne Gunter, Paul Kenny, 
Tiggs Keywood-Wainwright, Bob McAuley, Derek Richmond, Stephen Woodliffe and         
Mary Wright 
 
Portfolio holders: Councillors Peter Bedford and Raymond Singleton-McGuire 
 
Officers in attendance for the flood recovery update only: Strategic Director & Deputy Chief 
Executive, Head of Housing, Health & Community Services, Principal Community Safety 
Officer, Principal Officer (Street Scene) and Communications and Marketing Manager  
 
Other officers: Head of Financial Services, Senior Accountant and Senior Democratic 
Services Officer 
 
Observer: County Councillor Sue Ransome  
 

 

************************************************************ 

23 FORMATION OF A NEW TOWN COUNCIL 
 
The Leader presented a report by the Chief Executive, concerning proposed changes to 
the procedure for the formation of a town council, which would be implemented by 
September 2014.   
 
The Chief Executive’s report of 13 February 2013 had set out the current procedure, which 
the Government wished to simplify to encourage more parish councils to be formed in line 
with the localism agenda.  Consultation had run from October 2012 to January 2013.  The 
Government’s response was published in September 2013. 
 
Currently, the number of signatures required from a community in a petition to the local 
authority to begin the process was between 10-50% depending on the number of electors.  
On receipt of the petition the local authority would agree terms of reference for a 
Community Governance Review and there was no time limit set for this.  Once terms of 
reference were agreed the authority would have to complete the review in a 12-month 
period.   
 
Proposed changes included timescales being limited to 12 months from receipt of a 
petition and the number of signatures required on the petition reduced to 7.5% of electors 
for all but very small communities.  Legislation would clarify the proposals.   
 
If necessary, the Chief Executive would report to the Cabinet about the matter.  The review 
would require 2 full time employees to complete it in 12 months and, with consultation, 
would cost around £70,000, which the Council would meet.  
 
Some Members welcomed the changes as the way forward; BTAC needed to change and 
democracy would be improved in line with the Localism agenda and public engagement, 

APPENDIX B 

Page 53



EXERPT FROM MINUTES 
 

particularly as, in 2015, more people outside the town would set the precept than those 
inside the area.  Others felt BTAC did not need to change at all and the public would not 
want to spend this amount of money on an extra layer of government.  Some then 
contended that there would not be additional cost; the same precept would be incurred 
and it would be the same layer of local government as the parish councils. 
 
The issue of Members not having to live within the town area to become Members of 
BTAC was compared to parishes.  It was clarified that people did not need to live within a 
parish to become a parish councillor; they had to live within 3 miles of the boundary or own 
land or a business within the parish.  It was remarked that Members living outside the town 
area still represented the people who lived there.   
 

The Chairman stated that the process was intended to benefit larger areas than Boston 
town; to introduce it here would result in the Council’s demise.   
 

RESOLVED: That the report be noted. RH 

 
************************************************************ 

Page 54



 

Information from the Government website at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/get-involved/take-part/set-up-a-town-or-
parish-council  

Set up a town or parish council  

Local councils provide services to meet local needs and improve community wellbeing. 

 

What is it? 

Town and parish councils are the first level of local government. They provide communities 

with a democratic voice and a structure for taking community action. 

More than a third of people in England currently have a town or parish council, and the 

government is making it easier to set one up. 

How can I take part? 

To set up your own town or parish council, you’ll need to first give your local authority a 

petition containing the signatures of at least 7.5% of the local population. 

The petition must: 

 state exactly what it proposes: creating a parish or town council for a defined area 

 contain the signatures of at least 7.5% of local electors, based on the most recent 

electoral register - you’ll need more signatures for areas with fewer than 2,500 

electors 

If the petition is valid, your local authority will carry out a ‘community governance review’ 

to see if a local council should be created. 

  

APPENDIX C 

Page 55

https://www.gov.uk/government/get-involved/take-part/set-up-a-town-or-parish-council
https://www.gov.uk/government/get-involved/take-part/set-up-a-town-or-parish-council


 

A neighbourhood forum that’s had a neighbourhood development plan passed at referendum 

can trigger a community governance review without needing a petition. 

You can get more information and advice about what you need to do from the National 

Association of Local Councils’ (NALC) Create a Council site or you can contact your County 

Association of Local Councils. Each county has its own association. You can find contact 

details on the NALC website. For London, contact NALC direct. You may be able to get 

funding from them to help with this. 

You can also read about what happens after a petition is submitted in ‘Guidance on 

Community Governance Reviews’ which explains how local authorities should review the 

petitions. 

 

Related content  

 Community governance reviews: guidance 

 Understand how your council works 

 Local government structure and elections 

 Make a neighbourhood plan 

 Invest in local enterprises 

 

Page 56

http://mycommunity.org.uk/programme/neighbourhood-planning/
http://www.nalc.gov.uk/our-work/create-a-council
http://www.nalc.gov.uk/about-county-associations
http://www.nalc.gov.uk/about-county-associations
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-governance-reviews-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/understand-how-your-council-works
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/local-government-structure-and-elections
https://www.gov.uk/government/get-involved/take-part/make-a-neighbourhood-plan
https://www.gov.uk/government/get-involved/take-part/invest-in-local-enterprises


EXERPT FROM MINUTES 
 

 
 
 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE (BTAC) 
 

 
 

27 November 2019 

Present: Councillor Paul Goodale (Chairman), Councillor Colin Woodcock (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Alison Austin, Alan Bell, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, Viven Edge, 
Deborah Evans, Martin Griggs, Neill Hastie, Brian Rush, Yvonne Stevens and 
Stephen Woodliffe 
 
Officers –  
Head of Place and Space and Senior Democratic Services Officer 
 
Guest: Inspector Fran Harrod, Boston’s Policing Inspector, Lincolnshire Police 
 
Observers: Councillors Tracey Abbott, Paul Skinner and Nigel Welton 
 
Also in attendance: County Councillor P Cooper 
 
 

************************************************************ 
39   SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL 

 
The Committee looked at the background information attached to the agenda pack, 
which had been requested by the Chairman in response to requests from some 
Members, to assist the Committee to consider whether BTAC should be a Town Council 
before asking for a report to be drafted with detailed information. 
 
It was noted that the process for setting up a town council had to be triggered by a 
1,800-signature petition followed by a Governance Review, which would take a year.   
 
One Member who had requested the information expressed the view that a Town 
Council was needed in order to address a “democratic deficiency”.  Other areas in the 
borough were covered by parish councils, but the town wards were covered by BTAC, 
which did not have the same powers, and more needed to be done for the residents of 
the town.   
 
Others agreed, particularly as the town’s population was growing.  It would be a 
significant step to take, but would achieve self-determination and it would be worthwhile 
investigating the options.   
 
In particular, there was frustration that the Committee had to have Cabinet approval for 
higher levels of expenditure and that the Committee’s recent recommendation to 
Cabinet for funding for the events programme had been deferred.  However, it was 
suggested that the recommendation might have been approved had the former Portfolio 
Holder been present to present it and another suggestion was to ask that the limit on 
BTAC’s expenditure be raised.   
 
There was also a view that a town council would create another layer of government and 
additional work for officers when the Committee worked well as it was.  The Committee 
currently had a good budget and officers; a town council would need new members, 

APPENDIX D 

Page 57



EXERPTS FROM FULL MINUTES 
 

officers and clerk as well as a base to meet and would have to pay for services such as 
emptying litter bins and lighting the streets.   
 
It was then proposed and seconded that the matter of setting up a town council should 
not be considered. 
 
During further debate, the Chief Executive pointed out that BTAC had executive powers, 
delegated from Cabinet, and advised Members to consider what they believed they 
could do as a town council that they could not presently do as BTAC.  Officers would 
investigate the options if Members wished.  It would be a decision for Cabinet to 
consider if BTAC wished to recommend that the financial limit on its expenditure be 
raised.   
 
In response to a suggestion that the Committee could also investigate moving back to 
the full committee system, the Chairman advised Members that this would have to be 
considered by Full Council, not BTAC.   
 
[The meeting adjourned temporarily and Councillor Viven Edge left at this point.] 
 
An amendment was then proposed and seconded that the matter be deferred to a future 
meeting and when put to the vote this was approved as the substantive motion.  A vote 
was then taken on the substantive motion and it was: 
 

RESOLVED: That consideration of the possibility of setting up a town council be 
deferred to a future meeting. 

Page 58



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE 

DATE: 5 AUGUST 2020 

SUBJECT: ACCELERATED GRANT THROUGH THE TOWNS FUND 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: DEPUTY LEADER 

REPORT AUTHOR: DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE (PLACE) 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 
 
To provide an update on the Towns Fund and the allocated accelerated grant funding of 
£750,000 delivered through the mechanism of the Towns Fund to support the delivery of 
capital projects in the financial year 2020/21, that meet the Towns Fund Intervention 
Framework and will have the greatest immediate impact to aid economic recovery. 
  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That BTAC notes and supports the following recommendations to be considered by Full 
Council on 10 August 2020 - 
 
1. Notes the sum of £750,000 Accelerated Grant funding to support capital projects 

that respond to immediate challenges and support the economic recovery of Boston, 
and its inclusion in the 2020/21 Capital Programme.  

 
2. Authorises the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) to confirm in writing to Ministry of 

Housing, Communities & Local Government by 14th August 2020 of the project 
proposals and that they are in line with the Towns Fund intervention framework as 
set out in the Towns Fund further guidance. 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The projects selected to benefit from this funding are connected to the emerging Boston 
Town Deal Investment Plan.  These projects are considered to enable our town to restore 
pride and confidence and build better, stronger local economies for the long term.  
 
The award of this grant funding has provided the Council with an opportunity to work with 
key partners to accelerate projects that will influence and support the recovery which has 
not been able to progress as quickly as hoped for due to the covid-19 pandemic. 
 
These projects stimulate economic participation, job creation and investment opportunities, 
nurtures and influences economic well-being across the whole Borough.  
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 59

Agenda Item 4



2 

 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
Not providing confirmation to the MHCLG by the deadline of 14 August 2020, would 
jeopardise the opportunity to create sustainable growth to enable the Council to build a 
stronger and more resilient economy, and potentially affect the prospects of being included 
in allocations for further funding rounds. 
 
 

REPORT 
 

1. Background 

1.1 On 30th June 2020 the Prime Minister gave a speech and laid out plans for a “New 
Deal’ to support Britain’s recovery putting jobs, skills and infrastructure investment at 
the heart of a post Covid19 economic growth strategy, and as part of this announced 
financial support for various sectors, including those capital investment projects, 
schemes or programmes that will influence and contribute to the ‘levelling up’ 
agenda.  

1.2 Included in that speech was the announcement of £5bn accelerated grant funding 
delivered through the mechanism of the Towns Fund to help expedite projects that 
will have the greatest immediate impact to aid the economic recovery on towns like 
Boston.  

1.3 On the 1st July 2020 the Chief Executive received notification in writing that Boston 
Borough Council, through the Towns Fund, had been selected to receive £750,000 
in accelerated grant funding to support capital projects that will drive jobs growth, 
create further investment and the ability to look to build a stronger and more resilient 
economy for all our communities. 

1.4 The letter from Jenny Dibden, Co-Director Cities & Local Growth Unit at Ministry of 
Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) sets out how the grant 
allocation is calculated, potential project interventions and the requirement to 
respond by the 14th August 2020 to MHCLG with project proposals. 

1.5 The letter also reiterates the government’s agenda to ‘level up’ and that the 
government recognises the Towns Fund is one vehicle that clearly supports local 
areas to realise and nurture their own ambitions to level up.  

1.6 The government’s favoured approach to allocating grant funding to areas is by 
population size data extracted from the 2011 Census, using the Office for National 
Statistics’ categorisation of small, medium and large towns. Using this methodology, 
the grant allocation for Boston Borough Council is £750,000 to fund capital projects, 
which can be delivered this financial year 2020/21.  

1.7 The MHCLG are particularly keen to see, in collaboration with the Town Deal Board, 
capital projects that respond to immediate challenges and support the economic 
recovery including the repurposing of empty commercial buildings, open space 
infrastructure - parks and green space, improvements to the town centre and where 
an immediate benefit can be achieved - demolition or site remediation. 

Page 60



3 

 

1.8 The MHCLG has issued a Frequently Asked Questions paper to provide further 
clarity and definition on the types of interventions, expectations and outcomes.  The 
FAQs are attached for information at Appendix 1.  

1.9 The Town Deal Board is the vehicle through which the vision and strategy for the 
town is defined. The board, through a well-evidenced based Town Investment Plan 
(TIP), will set out a clear programme of projects, collaborating with partners and 
other public sector bodies to ensure a holistic approach to deliver sustainable long 
term economic and productivity growth. 

1.10 There is also an expectation from MHCLG that the Council will consult and engage 
fully with the Board of the Boston Town Deal when identifying projects, and on 7 July 
the Boston Town Deal Board were advised of the accelerated grant and encouraged 
to suggest potential interventions which related to the emerging investment plan. 

  
 
2. Potential Project Interventions 
 
2.1 Consideration should be given to those projects that can facilitate and deliver 

sustained growth and return the maximum economic Benefit to Cost Ratio (BCR) for 
all of our communities in the shortest amount of time.  

 
2.2 Again, any project should be in a position to move quickly as funding is only 

available for this financial year 2020/21. It is also becoming clear that government 
will be looking more closely at funding projects that will deliver economic returns in 
the shortest amount of time. 

 
2.3 The Town Board has been advised of the Accelerated Funding opportunity and how 

this can link to the emerging themes of the Boston Town Deal.  
 
2.4 Listed below are potential project interventions which meet the criteria set out by the 

MHCLG:- 
 

(i) Haven High Academy – 3G Pitch Development Project - £120,000 

Haven High Academy is applying to the Football Foundation for funding towards a 
full size floodlit 3G Football Turf Pitch on the site in Marian Road, Boston. Alongside 
this, the school needs to identify additional capital funding to ensure the project is 
viable.  

 
The school is an 11-16 secondary school with academy status and is the only 
secondary school within the eight schools of the Boston Witham Academies 
Federation. Haven High Academy currently has 1172 pupils on roll. The Federation 
prides itself on working in partnership to enhance the life experiences and chances 
of all the children and young people who come through their doors. 

 
The academy is looking to develop their facilities, not only to support their students, 
but to provide opportunities for the local community groups to continue to access 
high quality facilities on their site. The new 3G artificial pitch will complement the 
existing facilities on site and promote the academy as the hub of the local 
community. Haven High has already shown they can manage and maintain facilities 
to a high standard and have a clear approach to being a hub for the local area. 

 

Page 61



4 

 

During early consultation on the #MyTown campaign as part of the Boston Town 
Deal, there was a significant amount of public support for increased sports facilities 
in the Town, specifically 3G and 4G pitches. Boston has one of the lowest provisions 
in the county. 

 
The cost for a full size flood 3G pitch is in the region of £750,000 (including 
professional fees and contingency).  The school will be using part of their capital 
reserves towards the project, but will also be seeking other funding to contribute to 
the partnership funding required. The school hope to apply to the Football 
Foundation for a large contribution towards the cost of the pitch, but need to explore 
all other funding opportunities. 

 
Haven High Academy are seeking £120,000 contribution. 

 

(ii) Boston College Digital, Transport and Logistics Academy – 

£182,976 

The Academy is due for completion for November 2020, Boston College's Digital, 
Transport and Logistics Academy (the DTLA) is proposed to introduce new courses 
that will provide skills training for Lincolnshire's established logistics and 
transportation industry with a focus on digital innovation and technologies for the 
future.  
 
The DTLA’s facilities will include a transport workshop, computer rooms, a network 
and hardware computer room and a student break-out space. This will continue to 
build upon the success of the Engineering, Manufacturing and Technology centre 
(EMAT). 

 
The logistics and transport industry provide approximately 40,000 jobs in the South 
East of Lincolnshire and is a key area of focus, together with the Port of Boston, in 
the emerging Boston Town Investment Plan.  
 
As part of the work of the Town Deal Board, there is ongoing consultation with the 
logistics industry and the Port of Boston. This valuable engagement includes working 
with employers to map the current and future provision to meet skills needs, both 
locally and nationally, to ensure that the facilities implemented and courses delivered 
are relevant to the employment opportunities available and enable industries to 
continue to grow and develop. 

 
As a result of this engagement, Boston College has identified the essential 
equipment required and this will accelerate the support for skills and employment not 
just for our young people but also adult learners, many who may need to retrain as a 
consequence of the impact of Covid19 on the employment market. 
The acquisition of the equipment and services would enable the full completion of 
the DTLA. The DTLA project is GLLEP funded and destined to support the skills 
acquisition within the key sector of ports and logistics. 

 
 (iii)  Boston Town Heritage Projects - £277,700 

 
The Boston Townscape Heritage Project will significantly enhance the eastern area 
of the town’s historic market place for the benefit of local businesses, the local 
community and visitors to the town.  

Page 62



5 

 

 
Boston’s rich and unique historic environment, dating from the medieval period to the 
20th century, will be explored, celebrated and conserved through a scheme of capital 
works and an innovative activity programme.  
 
The project has been developed through a partnership between Boston Borough 
Council and Heritage Lincolnshire which aims to build upon the momentum gained 
from recent heritage led regeneration initiatives in the town through a previous 
Historic England supported Partnership Scheme in Conservation Areas and will also 
work collaboratively with other local partners on activities relating to the Hanse 
League membership and Mayflower 2020. 

 
The project to date has successfully bid for match funding to the Heritage Lottery 
Fund and Lincolnshire County Council and is now putting forward a bid for match 
funding to the Accelerator Fund as part of the Boston Town Deal, to enable the 
capital elements of the project to be realised in full.   
 
The scheme area includes the eastern boundary of the market place, Dolphin Lane 
and Pump Square and individual buildings eligible for grant funding have been 
identified.  Work already undertaken on the project by Heritage Lincolnshire and the 
Borough Council with local businesses, has resulted in the first three buildings within 
it, at a point that they ready to be renovated, subject to funding, and be completed by 
the end of this financial year (2020/21).   
 
Lincolnshire County Council is also in the process of developing its highway 
development project for the Lane to also be delivered this financial year 

 
Detailed below are the three individual projects the bid to the Accelerator Fund could 
support totalling £272,250 and the bid also includes an amount for promotional 
materials and activity in support of the project totalling £5,450.    

 

 16 Market Place – Has been granted listed building consent and planning 
permission. It has been out to tender and is currently awaiting a final tender 
return.  

 17 Market Place – Planning permissions have been granted, the tender process 
is also complete and the project is currently awaiting a grant offer so works can 
proceed on site. 

 8 Dolphin Lane – Planning permissions have been granted and it is currently out 
to tender. Publicity and Promotion for all of the above to include the Accelerator 
Fund and the Boston Town Deal within the wider project funding partnership.  

 
This project is seeking £277,700.  

 
(iv) Experience Boston: Travel, Trade and Influence - £80,000 

With the wealth of assets as a quintessential and visually stunning  Historic Market 
Town and Port Boston is uniquely poised to build on increased local, regional, 
national and international profile as a quality historic and cultural visitor destination, 
bringing all the wider benefits to local and visitor economies as well as driving 
increased opportunities for investment.   

 
 
 

Page 63



6 

 

 
The project will enhance our cultural infrastructure to engage and share more 
effectively these stories as well as Boston’s historic trade and maritime associations, 
and the influence the town has had locally and internationally. Critically it will also 
orientate users to the wider retail offer of the town and give opportunity for fuller 
engagement with its businesses. 

 
The project will develop physical interpretation and heritage resources that are 
focussed on the historic environment of the town and its culture. It will also 
importantly build on reinforcing the placebrand of the town and orientating people 
through mapping solutions to the cultural and retail opportunities the town has to 
offer.  
 
This also having the effect of continuing momentum in the investment and delivery of 
initiatives in the town which has seen a consistently upward trajectory of 
improvement and enhancement making it a more compelling destination to consider 
making a home and place to work and invest. ‘Experience Boston’ will provide long 
term benefit within the public realm.  

 
There is significant opportunity to add to current public realm improvements within 
Boston, helping inform locals and visitors alike to Boston's rich Heritage. This builds 
on the placebrand, wayfinding and design toolkit developed in the successful HLF 
project 'Boston: Explore and Discover'. That project was the catalyst for a number of 
continuing improvements in both the public realm and the visual identity of the town. 
The project, through its physical legacy will continue to enhance the offer of the town 
both as a heritage destination and also as a place to live and work in.   

 
The successful 'Boston: Explore and Discover' project acted as a catalyst for 
continued improvement and the council has invested in the town and the public 
realm as well as embedding the placebrand throughout the town. The town is now 
ready for a second phase of investment to expand the interpretative schemes and 
maximise engagement with the town’s heritage and local and visitor economies.  

 
This project is seeking £80,000 

  

 (v) PE21 Feasibility Funding - £50K 

Boston Borough Council commissioned AR Urbanism to undertake a master 
planning excise on a 10-acre under-utilised town centre location to maximise the 
economic potential working closely with both the public and private sectors. This 
catalyst place-led regeneration scheme looks to influence real economic benefits, 
health & well-being and social value opportunities for generations to come.  

 
There are specific sector opportunities identified within the PE21 masterplan that can 
harness more value added services include a new Well-being and Leisure facility, 
Transport Hub, hotel, work and learning provision as well as residential and extra 
care facilities.  

 
However, to test and underpin the interventions, recommendations and the viability 
of the PE21 Master plan and more recently market demand post Covid-19, a 
feasibility study needs commissioning to fully understand the sustainable and 
economic potential  the PE21 vision can deliver. 

Page 64



7 

 

 
The report will consider current and projected future uses and market demands, 
which will ensure a more robust assessment on uses, values and deliverability to 
enable a better and clearer policy on approach and opportunity. 

 
(vi) The Sanctuary, Restore Church  - £200,000 

 
Restore Church is passionate about relationships and about the organisations and 
individuals that it connects with; as a consequence, the Church has a driving 
ambition to bring forward an exemplar project, The Sanctuary.   

 
The Sanctuary will be an inclusive community hub that will have a focus on 
supporting homeless and vulnerable people in the broadest sense; it will provide a 
range of services and opportunities that support people into accommodation, into 
training, into education and into work.   

 
The Sanctuary project has identified a suitable premise for sale on the open market 
within the ‘PE21’ area and has begun discussion with the agent.  As a project, it 
seeks to provide: 
 

 Self-contained accommodation with support. 

 Emergency access accommodation to support the most vulnerable within our 
community. 

 A Community Café, that offers training and volunteering opportunities as well as 
a revenue source to support the wider project. 

 A Community Supermarket, that like the café, will offer training, skills 
development and practical opportunities to the community, residents of the 
accommodation, as well as providing food schemes to help individuals and 
families in need. 

 Multi-agency space where support, training, advice and advocacy can be 
delivered. 

 Adaptive and inclusive spaces that can be used by small social enterprise and 
clubs. 

 The total cost of the project has been assessed at just under £1.5 million 
(including contingency).     

 
Of the total projected costs, we are seeking £200,000 from the Towns Fund towards 
the purchase cost of the identified premise; the purchase cost is £650,000. 

 
The remaining purchase costs will be funded by social investment from a provider 
with whom the Church have a strong existing relationship and through whose 
investment they have already purchased a number of supported housing units within 
the locality.    

 
In partnership with Restore, the Council is leading a bid to MHCLG under its ‘Next 
Steps Accommodation Programme’ (NSAP), to support conversion of the asset to 
provide both long term and emergency accommodation.   
 
Discussions with MHCLG are at an advanced stage with final bid submission due on 
20 August 2020, with a fast turnaround expected.  Conversion costs not eligible 
under NSAP will be funded by social investment and ensure that The Sanctuary can 
become the inclusive community hub its business case intends it to be 

Page 65



8 

 

CONCLUSION 
 
The opportunity to access this grant fund gives the Council the immediate ability to address 
and respond to the economic inequalities, start to drive economic growth that underpins the 
prosperity, aspirations and quality of life for our residents and businesses. Also by working 
closely with the Town Deal Board, start to stimulate inter-related projects that will create an 
environment where Boston becomes a regional destination for living, working, investing and 
visiting. 
 
The projects that have been selected are seeking to maximise the impact this funding 
stream can have on the greatest number of residents within the Borough. These include an 
emphasis on skills and education, the quality of the town centre offer through enhancing the 
heritage offer, the promotion of Boston as a place to visit, the support of some of our most 
vulnerable residents and the delivery of a 3G football pitch to improve the quality of the 
health of the Borough. 

 
This can only happen if both Council agree the identified projects align to or have a 
relationship with the emerging TIP with written conformation to MHCLG by 14th August 
2020 outlining these potential projects in agreement with the council’s S151 officer that any 
spend drawn down from the accelerated grant represents good value for money, can be 
delivered this financial year and is in line with the Towns Fund intervention framework as 
set out in the Towns Fund further guidance 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/towns-fund-further-guidance 
 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The £750,000 Accelerated Grant award will enable 100% funding to support early 
deliverable projects within the Towns Fund remit.  Should the projects submitted to 
MHCLG be approved progress will be reported through the Towns Fund Board and the 
Council’s quarterly performance reporting mechanisms. 
 
No further financial support from the Council is anticipated at this stage.  
 

 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no direct legal or equality implications arising from this report. The Accelerated 
Fund provides the Council to act as the accountable body for funding which must be spent 
by 31st March 2021. 
 
Any conditions of funding that are imposed on the Council, will form part of the conditions 
of spend on those whom we are working in partnership together with any performance 
outcomes that may be required. 
 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS 
 
None arising directly from this report. 
 

Page 66

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/towns-fund-further-guidance


9 

 

 
 

EQUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS 
 
None. 
 

 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS  
 
None. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
CMT 
 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 
 

APPENDIX A Towns Fund Further Guidance – FAQs 
 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were 
used in the production of this report. 
   

 
 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 
This report has not been considered by another Council committee. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



10 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is blank 

Page 68



011Page 69



012Page 70



013Page 71



014Page 72



015Page 73



016Page 74



 
BOSTON TOWN AREA COMMITTEE – WORK PROGRAMME 2020/21 

 
 

MEETING AGENDA ITEM 
 

LEAD OFFICER / MEMBER / GUEST 
    

 
7 OCTOBER 

2020 

 

 Draft Annual BTAC Report 

 Update on Central Park and Buoys Projects 

 
Chairman 

Head of Place & Space 
 

    

 
16 DECEMBER 

2020 

 

 Play Area Improvements ‘Wish List’  
 

 
Head of Place & Space 

    

 
3 FEBRUARY 

2021 

 

 Proposed BTAC budget 2021/22 and forecast to 2025/26 

 
Chief Finance Officer  

   

 
24 MARCH 

2021 

 

  

 

    

 
19 MAY 
 2021 

 

  

 

    

 

 Updates for Circulation to Members: Policing Issues, Financial Position 2020/21, Work of BTAC Operatives 
 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 5



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	B MINUTES
	1 BTAC SMALL GRANT SCHEME
	2 BTAC REPORT - REVIEW OF 2020/21 EVENTS AND LOOKING FORWARD TO 2021/22 EVENTS PROGRAMME
	Appendix A - Events review – current status
	Appendix B - Option 1 - Proposed Events Budget 2021/22
	Appendix C - Option 2 - Proposed Events Budget 2021-22
	Appendix D - Option 3 - Proposed Events Budget 2021-22
	Appendix E - Sponsorship support
	Appendix F - Letters to Santa

	3 SETTING UP A TOWN COUNCIL
	Appendix A - Report to BTAC of 11th December 2013
	Appendix B - Minutes of BTAC meeting of 11th December 2013
	Appendix C - Information from the www.gov.uk website on setting up a town council
	Appendix D - Minutes of BTAC meeting of 27th November 2019

	4 TOWN DEAL - UPDATE
	Appendix A

	5 WORK PROGRAMME - STANDING ITEM

